
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY MARCH 16, 2020 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 

Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 

Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com  

Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com  

Council Member Tom Dean tdiowa@hotmail.com  

Council Member Jerry Sexton jerrysextonwb@gmail.com  

City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 

City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are public 

records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be subject to 

public disclosure.    
AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations 
 

1. West Branch Police Chief, Mike Horihan will report on the addition of the new squad 
truck to the police fleet. 

 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments may be 

submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  
 
 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite the 

meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on the 

Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting March 2, 2020.  
2. Motion to Approve Additional Cubby Park Purchases Paid from an Approved Cubby Park 

Project Budget of $25,000. 
 
3. Resolution 1881 - Approving 28e Agreements Between The City of West Branch, Iowa and 

the Boards of Trustees of Cass, Gower, Graham, Iowa, Scott and Springdale Townships for 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

the Purposes of Fire Protection, Assistance for Other Emergencies and/or Disasters Relating 
to Life and Property, or Hazardous Materials. 

 
4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda  

1. Discussion Item: The Animal Control Commission Would Like to Recommend a 
Proposal to Trap / Neuter and Release Cats as a Part of a Pilot Project Within the City 
Limits.  

2. Second Reading of Ordinance 773 Amending Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of West Branch, Iowa.  “Eliminating discounted rates for consumption over 
250,000” gallons per meter per month.   

3. First Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”.    

4. Resolution 1880 – Adopting the City of West Branch, IA Sewer Fee Adjustment 
Guidelines and Establishing a Policy for Determination of Abatement of Wastewater 
Fees.   

5. Resolution 1882 – Amending Resolution 1724 An Agreement with Barnhart’s Custom 
Services LLC for Site Preparation to Include Additional Invoicing of $39,298.88 for 
related services  

6. Resolution 1883 – Authorize the City Administrator to enter into negotiations with the 
vendor of choice (in order of ranking) for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling 
Collection Services. 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

 

J. Adjournment Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for inspection 

on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not approved until 

the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.)  

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council           March 2, 2020  

Council Chambers     Regular Meeting    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Roll call: Council members: 

Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler, Jerry Sexton and Tom Dean were present.  Laughlin welcomed the 

audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer 

Gordon Edgar, City Attorney Kevin Olson, City Engineer Dave Schechinger, Police Chief Mike Horihan, Public Works 

Director Matt Goodale and Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell.   
 
PRESENTATIONS 

Pete Swisher, Superintendent Herbert Hoover National Park presented the parks upcoming flood mitigation project.  

Swisher said the project has been in the works for years and is now (finally) ready to commence.  In February, the project 

was awarded to Miller Trucking & Excavating from Silvis, IL.  Swisher reviewed the timeline which starts this month with 

tree removal along the creek from South 2nd Street to the shelter area in the park.  Swisher said approximately one hundred 

trees would be removed by the end of the month.  He added that approximately sixty trees would be replaced at the 

conclusion of the project next year.  He further explained construction of the detention basin would begin in the fall of 

2020.  During the late spring and summer months utilities would be moved all while keeping the park open for visitors and 

no interruption with Hoover’s Hometown Days.  Swisher said the project would conclude by June 2021 and additional 

information on the project could be found at nps.gov/heho/learn/flood-mitigation-project. 
 
Melissa Russell, Park & Recreation Director presented the recreation schedule for 2020 which includes the annual Easter 

Egg Hunt happening this year at Cubby Park on Saturday, April 11th.  Russell said she has been working on the grand 

opening for the park and is hoping to have that on April 18th with a Pitch, Hit & Run competition.  She stated that field 

requests are coming in for both games and practices and that she is working on scheduling youth tournaments as well.  

Russell shared some signage designs for Cubby Park for the council to review and consider.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

Ben Litscher, part-time Public Works employee shared his feelings with the Council on how employee raises were given.  

Litscher, who has worked for the City since 2014 said that in recent years the annual increases seemed to be on the 

decline.  Litscher stated that he takes pride in his work and enjoys his job and not looking to leave, but hopes the Council 

would look toward a merit system.  Litscher who lives in Mechanicsville and commutes to West Branch for work was 

asked to join the West Branch Fire Department a couple of years ago when the department was lacking day time help.  

Litscher joined willingly as he also serves as a firefighter in Mechanicsville.  Dean and Stoolman agreed that employee 

compensation determination was lacking and that the subject has been discussed several times.   

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting February 18, 2020. 

Motion to Approve a Class E Liquor License, Class B Wine, Class C Beer (carryout), Sunday sales for Casey’s General 

Store #3463, Located at 615 S. Downey Street. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

PAUL O'NEIL      REIMB-CLOTHING ALLOWANCE    111.27  
QUILL CORP      SUPPLIES      62.06  
RACOM CORPORATION     OFFICE RADIO     6,916.00  
RANDY'S CARPETS     BUILDING MAINTENANCE    320.00  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS     244.00  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    MONITORS, REC & OFFICE SUPPLIE   1,183.33  
USA BLUE BOOK      SUPPLIES      1,240.80  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.     USGS FLOOD STUDY     369.25  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.     I-80 WIDENING COORDINATION    360.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.     I-80 WIDENING -UTILITY RELOCATION - DESIGN 1,740.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.     CHANNEL WIDENING - FLOOD IMPROVEMENTS 352.00  
VERIZON WIRELESS     VERIZON WIRELESS     845.16  
WATCH GUARD VIDEO     WATCH GUARD VIDEO    5,417.75  
WEST BRANCH FORD     VEHICLE REPAIR     792.09  
    
TOTAL            27,566.59  
    
PAYROLL       2/21/2020      54,680.33  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
     
JULIA HIME      VIDEOGRAPY SERVICE     100.00  
MEDIACOM      CABLE SERVICE     41.90  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER    REPLENISH POSTAGE METER    500.00  
UPS       SHIPPING      47.59  
    
TOTAL            689.49  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         82,936.41  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND   36,873.70 
022   CIVIC CENTER   52.44 
031   LIBRARY    7003.15 
110   ROAD USE TAX   7,346.65 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   11,486.51 
319   RELOCATING WATER & SEWER  1,740.00 
600   WATER FUND   9,438.97 
610   SEWER FUND   8,273.74 
740   STORM WATER UTILITY  721.25 
    
GRAND TOTAL     82,936.41 

 
Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Dean, Stoolman, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.   Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA   
Third Reading of Ordinance 772 Approving the Rezoning of a Certain Parcel of Property Located North of Interstate 

80 and East of Parkside Drive from B-2 Business District to a PUD – Planned Unit Development District (Parkside BP 

property). /Move to action. 
ORDINANCE NO. 772 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF AND ADJACENT TO INTERSTATE 80 AND EAST 

OF PARKSIDE DRIVE FROM B-2 BUSINESS DISTRICT TO PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Owner of the property described below has petitioned the City of West Branch for a zoning district amendment for property located north of and 

adjacent to Interstate 80 and east of Parkside Drive, said parcel being legally described as:   
Commencing at a point of reference at the Northwest corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, West Branch, Cedar 

County, Iowa, thence South 1,638.0 feet along the West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 (the West line of the Northwest quarter of said Section 8 is 

assumed to bear true North and South) to the Southwest corner of Lot A of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8, according to the plat of survey made for James 
Cook, said survey being filed in Surveyor’s Record 3, Page 265, in the office of the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa, thence South 89°37’ East 60 feet, more or less, 

along the South line of said Lot A to a point of intersection with the easterly right-of-way line of the public highway and point of beginning of tract herein described; 

thence continuing South 89°37’ East 176.0 feet along the Southerly line of said Lot A to a point; thence South 0°23’ West 200 .00 feet to a point; thence North 
89°37’ West 140.84 feet to a point of intersection with the easterly right-of-way line of the public highway; thence North 11°59’ West 18.54 feet along the Easterly 

right-of-way line of said highway to a point; thence North 9°21’ West 184.55 feet along the easterly right-of-way line of said public highway (whose right-of-way 

is described in Iowa State Land Office Correction Patent No. 603, recorded in Volume 5, Page 158, Records of the Iowa Secretary of State, Des Moines, Iowa) to 
the point of beginning, and except the North 40 feet of tract above described; and subject to a perpetual easement for foot and motor vehicle travel, in common with 

others, over and across the westerly 30 feet of tract above described.  



 

 

AND  

Commencing as a point of reference at the Northwest corner of Section 8, Township 79 North, Range 4 West of the 5th Principal Meridian, West Branch, Cedar 
County, Iowa; thence South 1638.0 feet along the West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 (the West line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 is 

assumed to bear true North and South) to the Southwest corner of Lot A of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 8 according to plat of survey made for James 

Cook, said survey being filed in Surveyor’s Record 3, page 265 in the office of the Auditor of Cedar County, Iowa; thence South 89°37’ East 60 feet, more or less, 
along the South line of said Lot A to a point of intersection with the Easterly right-of-way line of the public highway; thence South 9°21’ East 184.55 feet along 

the Easterly right-of-way line of said public highway to a point; thence South 11°59’ East 18.54 feet to point of beginning of tract herein described; thence South 

89°37’ East 140.84 feet to a point; thence South 0°23’ West 174.42 feet to a point of intersection with the Northerly right-of-way line of Interstate Highway #80; 
thence North 68°03’ West 120.79 feet along the Northeasterly right-of-way line of said highway to a point; thence North 11°59’ West 133.11 feet along the 

Northeasterly right-of-way line of said highway to the point of beginning.  (Right-of-way of the subject highway is described in Iowa State Land Office Correction 

Patent No. 603, recorded in Volume 5, Page 158, records of the Iowa Secretary of State, Des Moines, Iowa) (The “Parcel”); and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Owner has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in a PUD – Planned Unit Development District in place of an B-2 Business 

District; and  
 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published notice thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 
 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to show the Parcel being located in a PUD – Planned Unit Development 

District in place of B-2 Business District.  

 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication as by law provided. 

 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of 

this ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of March, 2020. 

 
 Read First Time: February 4, 2020  

 Read Second Time: February 18, 2020 
 Read Third Time:  March 2, 2020 

 ____________________________________ 

 Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   
 
Motion by Dean, second by Goodweiler to approve the 3rd reading of Ordinance 772.  AYES:   Dean, 

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Sexton, Miller.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Resolution 1878 – Approving the Site Plan for Parkside BP, 401 Parkside Drive, West Branch. /Move to action. 

Ron Amelon, MMS Consultants explained the project to include remodeling and expanding the existing gas station to 

provide additional commercial space. Amelon said the expansion adds approximately five thousand square feet to the 

building.  Amelon said this project is part of the overall redesign of the area in the planned unit development area (to 

the east) creating a more attractive entrance to the city.  Developer Chad Kuene, said they hope to demolish the old 

car wash in the coming weeks and get started with the construction project.  Planning & Zoning had previously 

reviewed the site plan and unanimously approved the site plan with a contingency for a possible requirement of an 

engineered retaining wall along the south end of the property.  However, the need for a retaining wall would not be 

able to be determined until final grading was complete.  The Council had no objections or additional questions. 

Motion by Sexton, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1878.  AYES:  Sexton, Miller, Stoolman, Dean, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Discussion: To consider a draft Golf Cart Ordinance.    

The council discussed the proposed golf cart ordinance presented by resident Bobby Sexton at the February 18th City 

Council meeting and felt that changes were needed.  The council was not in favor of inspections or registrations for 

golf carts but did agree with following the State’s ordinance which includes; must be operated by a licensed driver, 

have proof of insurance, no night time driving (sunrise to sunset), must have a slow moving vehicle sign, a raised bike 

flag, and cannot travel on certain streets (to be determined).  Horihan said he would have his department continue 

with educating the public and increase enforcement of violators. 

 

First Reading of Ordinance 773 Amending Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa.  

“Eliminating discounted rates for consumption over 250,000 gallons” per meter per month. / Move to action. 



 

 

This item was discussed at the last Council meeting and the Council decided to move forward with eliminating the 

water discount.  The Council asked staff to notify the current high usage customers as a courtesy that the discount was 

being discontinued.  Brick suggested that for billing purposes, the ordinance clarify the effective date of the change.  

The council directed Brick to make the change effective May 1, 2020 and have the ordinance updated accordingly. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Dean to approve the 1st reading of Ordinance 773.  AYES:   Goodweiler, 

Dean, Miller, Sexton, Stoolman.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Public Hearing: Adopting the City Administrator’s recommended budget for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 

ending June 30, 2021. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 8:17 p.m. There were no public comments.  Laughlin closed the public hearing 

at 8:18 p.m. 

 
Resolution 1879 – Adopting the City Administrator’s recommended budget for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and 

ending June 30, 2021. / Move to action. 

The council had no further comments on the proposed budget. 

Motion by Miller, second by Sexton to approve Resolution 1879.  AYES:  Miller, Sexton, Stoolman, Dean, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
First Reading of Ordinance 774 Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol Consumption and Intoxication”; and 

Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park Policies and Regulations”. / Move to action. 

The mayor and Council remained torn on the issue of allowing alcohol in the city parks.  Currently, Beranek Park is 

the only park in which the City allows consumption of alcohol during park hours.  Attorney Olson said Coralville 

does not allow alcohol in any city park unless a special permit is obtained.  Several topics were discussed such as the 

adult volleyball league which is played at Beranek Park, to the new pickle ball court at Cubby Park where patrons 

have been observed drinking, to a scenario of someone wanting to have a picnic in one of the parks and have a few 

beers or a glass (or two) of wine.  Stoolman remained adamant on not allowing alcohol at any park where children are 

playing.  The council could not come to a consensus on the ordinance as written and suggested tabling the item for 

further consideration.  Olson said he would prepare some options for the council to consider. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to TABLE the 1st reading of Ordinance 774.  AYES:   Stoolman, 

Goodweiler, Dean, Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
Discussion: Amending the Recreation Facility, Park & Sport Field Use and Fee Policy. 

Russell said the Park & Recreation Commission reviewed the fees for the various park shelters and fields and felt that 

rental fees should be collected for shelter use as there are related expenses for electricity, trash collection and restroom 

facilities.  The commission suggested that scheduling be set in blocks of time, rather than random hourly times to 

allow for more reservations.  Russell said the shelter fee would be $25 per four hours or $50 for a day’s use.  The 

council was agreeable with the recommendation. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones said four vendors responded to the request for proposal for trash collection services.  Jones stated that he would 

review the submissions and provide a recommendation to the council to approve at the March 16, 2020 City Council 

meeting. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

None. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

None.   

 

 

 



 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Miller responded to the subject from the part-time employee’s concerns on employee compensation and said he felt 

that this subject should be discussed among the Council members further.  Stoolman wished the Lady Bears 

basketball team luck as they move on to State 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn the regular meeting by Goodweiler, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City 

Council meeting adjourned at 9:13 p.m.  

       

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Additional Cubby Park Purchases Paid from an 

Approved Cubby Park Project Budget of $25,000. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator and Melissa Russell Parks Director 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 
 
Cubby Park has additional field and concession stand equipment that was not included in the bid. 

The Toro Sand Pro 2040Z is State of Iowa Bid pricing. Below is a list of items that are ready to be 

purchased for a total of $23,343.16.  Items such as shelving has already been purchased and installed.  
 

March 16th, 2020 Council Meeting  
    

Cubby Park Field Equipment Qty Unit Price Total 
 

Sand Pro 2040Z 1 $12,244.56 $12,244.56 
 

Jugs MVP Combo Pitching Machine 2 $899.90 $1,799.80 
 

Taper Junior Pro Mound  2 $689.00 $1,378.00 
 

Adjustable Batter’s Box Template 1 $240.00 $240.00 
 

Picnic Table 6 $300.00 $1,800.00 
 

Concession Stand Equipment Qty Unit Price Total 
 

Sam’s Club-Beverage Refrigerator 1 $2,498.00 $2,498.00 
 

Gold Medal-Nacho and Chili Dispenser 2 $399.95 $799.90 
 

Gold Medal Dog Roller 1 $979.95 $979.95 
 

Gold Medal Food Shield for hot dog roller 1 $139.00 $139.00 
 

Gold Medal Humified cabinet  1 $979.95 $979.95 
 

Gold Medal Flat Rack Kit 1 $209.00 $209.00 
 

Gold Medal Pizza and Pretzel Kit 1 $275.00 $275.00 
 

Total   $19,854.31 $23,343.16 
 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

There will still be additional expenses proposed at a later date.  Below is a list of those items. 

Remaining Cubby Park Items 

Cubby Park Entrance Sign 

Park Signage 

Dumpster Enclosure 

Trellis Extension 

Baseline Extensions 

Additional Parking 

Push Mower 

Weed Trimmer 

Display Board (for schedules) 

Railing on Field 2 

Field Distance Markers 

Splash Pad 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1881 – Approving 28e Agreements Between The City of West 

Branch, Iowa and the Boards of Trustees of Cass, Gower, Graham, Iowa, 

Scott and Springdale Townships for the Purposes of Fire Protection, 

Assistance for Other Emergencies and/or Disasters Relating to Life and 

Property, or Hazardous Materials. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The City of West Branch provides the surrounding townships with fire protection and aid and 

assistance for other emergencies.  The 28E agreements outline the terms of the agreements between 

the townships and the City of West Branch. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 1881 – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1881 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 28E AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA AND THE BOARDS OF TRUSTEES OF CASS, GOWER, GRAHAM, 

IOWA, SCOTT AND SPRINGDALE TOWNSHIPS FOR THE PURPOSES OF FIRE 

PROTECTION AND AID AND ASSISTANCE FOR OTHER EMERGENCIES OR 

DISASTERS RELATING TO LIFE AND PROPERTY, OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. 

 

 

  WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of West Branch and Cass, Gower, 

Graham, Iowa, Scott and Springdale Townships to have a joint agreement for the purpose of 

providing fire protection and aid and assistance for other emergencies or disasters relating to life and 

property, or hazardous materials; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the residents of West 

Branch to have updated agreements in place to provide these services to the various 

townships; and  

 

  WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreements. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa, that the aforementioned 28E Agreements are hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is 

directed to execute the agreements on behalf of the City. 

 
* * * * * * * * 

   Passed and approved this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 12, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 4 



EXPENDITURES 3/16/2020

AERO RENTAL INC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,072.50                
ALLIANT ENERGY ALLIANT ENERGY 12,650.40              
ALTORFER INC EQUIPMENT REPAIR PARTS 117.02                   
AMAZON BOOKS, SUPPLIES 574.05                   
BAKER & TAYLOR INC. BOOKS 161.97                   
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 5.02                        
CATHERINE STEEN MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 15.36                     
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER RECORDING FEES 34.00                     
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES WATER SOFTENER SERVICE 63.11                     
DEWEYS JACK & JILL SUPPLIES 29.45                     
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS SUPPLIES 32.63                     
ELECTRIC PUMP INC SERVICE CALL 2,011.70                
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 603.96                   
FRONTLINE PLUS FIRE & RESCUE OUTDOOR SIREN MAINTENANCE 1,160.00                
HINKHOUSE GLENN OR PAMELA BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 1,184.87                
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES SAFETY TRAINING 655.37                   
IOWA PARK AND RECREATION ASSOCIATION CONFERENCE 235.00                   
JAB INK GRAFIX & DESIGNS VEHICLE SIGNAGE 790.00                   
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC. RECYCLING -  FEBRUARY, 2020 4,013.75                
JOSHUA LANGFORD BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 1,106.48                
LENOCH & CILEK SUPPLIES 7.96                        
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS 1,281.12                
LINN COUNTY R.E.C. STREET LIGHTS 189.18                   
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC BUILDING MAINTENANCE 794.00                   
MENARDS MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 300.19                   
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE REPAIR PARTS 412.55                   
MOORE'S WELDING INC VEHICLE REPAIR 1,600.45                
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC. SUPPLIES, WATER METER 2,054.80                
NELSON & SONS PLUMBING INC SERVICE CALL 98.52                     
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCE POSTAGE METER LEASE 102.39                   
PYRAMID SERVICES INC. REPAIR PARTS 87.13                     
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC LAB ANALYSIS 759.00                   
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS OFFICE SUPPLIES 27.46                     
RACOM CORPORATION RADIO REPAIR 657.50                   
SAWYER, ALEX BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT 2,389.71                
SHIMMIN, NICK KEYS 60.00                     
STATE HYGIENIC LAB LAB ANALYSIS 26.00                     
STATE LIBRARY OF IOWA KIDS FIRST CONFERENCE 4-6-2020 125.00                   
TRUCK EQUIPMENT INC VEHICLE REPAIR 54.32                     
UPS SHIPPING 47.36                     
USA BLUE BOOK SUPPLIES 2,383.31                
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC DVDS, PROGRAM & MAINT SUPPLIES 303.10                   
WEX BANK WEX BANK 1,169.41                

TOTAL 41,447.10             



PAYROLL  3/6/2020 44,840.30             

PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS

DAKOTA KRUSE DEPOSIT REFUND 62.21                     
CHARLES MILLER DEPOSIT REFUND 18.06                     

TOTAL 80.27                     

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 86,367.67             
  

FUND TOTALS
001   GENERAL FUND 39,441.09              
022   CIVIC CENTER 997.51                   
031   LIBRARY 7,678.41                
110   ROAD USE TAX 8,873.44                
112   TRUST AND AGENCY 4,973.23                
600   WATER FUND 14,356.12              
610   SEWER FUND 10,047.87              

GRAND TOTAL 86,367.67             









FUND FEBRUARY

001  GENERAL FUND 21,704.81     

022  CIVIC CENTER 235.73          

031  LIBRARY 263.64          

036  TORT LIABILITY 188.77          

110  ROAD USE TAX 28,646.78     

112  TRUST & AGENCY 1,076.51       

119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND 151.53          

121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 15,823.18     

125  TIF 1,490.32       

226  DEBT SERVICE 1,308.11       

500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND 0.09               

502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND 0.03               

600  WATER FUND 41,719.07     

610  SEWER FUND 44,081.74     

740  STORM WATER UTILITY 5,113.54       

TOTAL 161,803.85  

 REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2020



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: The Animal Control Commission Would Like to 

Recommend a Proposal to Trap / Neuter and Release Cats as a Part of a 

Pilot Project Within the City Limits. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Dr. Alan Beyers, Chairman of the Animal Control Board. 

DATE:  March 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
Research shows that Trap-Neuter-Return (TNR) is the humane, effective approach for community 

cats. TNR improves cats’ lives, addresses community concerns, stabilizes colonies, and helps cats 

and people co-exist. This wide variety of research can be used by TNR advocates to support their 

advocacy efforts. Legislators, too, can turn to this research as confirmation that TNR is the only way 

to address community cats. 

 

Such activity despite its potential benefit would be a violation of our current code of ordinances.  

This request would like to have the City Council consider placing a moratorium (a temporary stay) 

on this portion Chapter 55.10; entitled, “Animals at Large Prohibited. 

 

The commission wants to implement TNR on a small portion of a feral cat colony and to study the 

outcomes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction / Feedback  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading of Ordinance 773 Amending Chapter 92 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa.  “Eliminating discounted rates 

for consumption over 250,000” gallons per meter per month. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

Revenue sufficiency is the primary financial objective for most water utilities that operate as 

enterprises. They must be financially self-sufficient, recovering not only the cost of daily operations 

but also funding capital improvements to fulfill their central public health mission. They strive to 

design rate structures and set rate levels in a manner that equitably charges a customer based on the 

cost-of-service. However, rates and rate structures can go well beyond these main objectives and 

provide an excellent avenue to help a utility achieve some of its goals and policies. 
 
This staff recommendation addresses the following areas that a rate structure should consider:  

 Promotion of Conservation 

 Affordability 

 Economic Development, and 

 Short-term Revenue Stability: 
 
The attached Ordinance 773 makes a small amendment to strike out the following language: 
 

$4.59 per 1,000 gallons, with a 1,700-gallon minimum, payable monthly effective June 20, 

2006. 
 
$5.23 per 1,000 gallons, with a 1,700-gallon minimum, payable monthly effective July 1, 

2012.  All consumption over 250,000 gallons per meter per month stays at this rate. 
 
Please see on the attached copy of Chapter 92 the strike out is highlighted with red lines stricken 

through the aforementioned language.  The effective date on the ordinance has also been amended 

to May 1st. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Second Reading of Ordinance 772 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

  



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 773 

 

ORDINANCE 773 AMENDING CHAPTER 92 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; “ELIMINATING DISCOUNTED RATES FOR 

CONSUMPTION OVER 250,000 GALLONS PER METER PER MONTH. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has recommended updating the City’s Water Rate Policy for 

reasons of conservation, sustainability and revenue stability ; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator has proposed to remove language relating to 

discounted or lower rates for water users that exceed 250,000 gallons of water per month; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment. Chapter 92 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby amended and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 

2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect May 1st 2020 after its 

passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  March 2, 2020 

Second reading: March 16, 2020 

Third Reading: April 6, 2020 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding, Chapter 78 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

  

The purpose of this item is to address issues related to safety and well-being of the citizens of the 

City of West Branch by prohibiting the unsafe use of golf carts on the public roads in the city.  We 

have received several complaints regarding the use of Golf Carts.  Particularly regarding operations 

by under aged children which may endanger the safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on 

the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf 

Cart.  This item was brought to the City’s attention by a citizen driven proposal, it was refined by city 

staff (primarily the police department) and presented with this first reading of a new code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the First Reading of Ordinance 775 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 775 

 

ORDINANCE 775 ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; ENTITLED “GOLF 

CARTS”. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has recommended establishing a City of West Branch Policy 

for reasons of safety and well-being of the citizens; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the operations of a Golf Cart by under aged children could endanger the 

safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, 

pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf Cart; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this is a practice as well as other risky or prohibited behaviors that involve 

the golf cart operations are addressed within this ordinance; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Establishing. Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby developed and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 

2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  March 16, 2020 

Second reading: April 6, 2020 

Third Reading: April 20, 2020 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 



  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1880 – Adopting the City of West Branch, IA Sewer Fee 

Adjustment Guidelines and establishing a policy for determination of 

abatement of wastewater fees. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  March 9, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
In 2019, the Council was approached by a couple of residents who requested sewer forgiveness 

for outdoor watering.  One resident said he was unaware that the City offered landscape meters for 

temporary outdoor use.  Another had a family member leave a garden hose running while watering 

a garden.  The Council denied the first request, but then considered the second which led the 

Council to consider a Sewer Waiver Policy that would be fair to all. 

 

Staff obtained policies from Iowa City and North Liberty and prepared “Exhibit A” per the 

direction of the Council at the February 18, 2020 City Council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1880 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 RESOLUTION 1880 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IA SEWER FEE 

ADJUSTMENT GUIDELINES TO ESTABLISH A POLICY FOR DETERMINTION OF 

SEWER FEE ABATEMENTS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch receives several requests for 

waiver of sewer fees each year from its residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch wishes to establish a policy for 

determining abatement of sewer/wastewater fees for certain situations; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the Sewer Fee Adjustment Guidelines, 

attached as “Exhibit A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa; that the Sewer Fee Adjustment Guidelines are hereby adopted and approved. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this 16th day of March 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1882 – Amending Resolution 1724 An Agreement with 

Barnhart’s Custom Services LLC for Site Preparation to Include Additional 

Invoicing of $39,298.88 for related services. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 25, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company 

with more than 130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations 

and walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green 

Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  While planning for a 

plant expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.  Instead of having this industrial use 

expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 

14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its 

mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of 

industrial park property for the aforementioned 4 acre site.  
  

Original Budget $400,000  
The Land Swap $250,000 (asset yet to sale @ in the Industrial Park $80,000) 

Site Preparation (Subgrade Deconstruction) $49,663.75 paid to date. 

Work yet to be paid $39,298.88 

 

Remaining Balance $61,037.37 

Income yet to be realized 
Grants $25,000 - $50,000 

Land sales $80,000 - $130,000 

Aggregate sales $00.00 (cover cost) 

 

Potential Amount Recovered $166,037 - $241,037 (estimated 50% of original budget) 
 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1882 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 
 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Work Paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 
 

Work yet to be paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 

Work yet to be paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 
 

 

Work yet to be paid – Above grade Deconstruction 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1882 

 

AMENDING RESOLUTION 1724 AN AGREEMENT WITH BARNHART’S CUSTOM 

SERVICES LLC FOR SITE PREPARATION TO INCLUDE ADDITIONAL INVOICING 

OF $39,298.88 FOR RELATED SERVICES.  

 

WHEREAS, The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company 

operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street and while planning for a plant expansion at 

that site, the city proposed a land swap.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional 

area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic 

Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; 

the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, Authorized the City Administrator to enter 

into an agreement not to exceed $50,000 with Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC for the services of 

site preparation for the site previously known as the Croell Redi-mix property. 

 

 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. is a local business with experience in 

removing concrete, excavation, and site clean-up encountered greater subgrade materials than 

originally anticipated including old rail road infrastructure; and,  

 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. has provided additional invoicing for 

services that have exceed $50,000, in the amount of $39,298.88; which includes above grade 

deconstruction of $1,900 and sub grade deconstruction of $37,398.88; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that the 

City Administrator is authorized to pay the requested invoicing from Barnhart’s Custom Services, 

LLC in the amount of $39,298.88 for the services of deconstruction / site preparation for the site 

previously known as the Croell Redi-mix property. 

 

* * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 
 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 16, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1883 – Authorize the City Administrator to enter into 

negotiations with the vendor of choice (in order of ranking) for Residential 

Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  March 12, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

The Solid Waste and Recycling evaluation task group has completed its review of proposals received 

for solid waste and recycling collection services.  After reading, analyzing, and meeting over the 

details of each proposal; the collective through a numbered ranking system has identified 3 top 

proposals.  These are the top proposals and are recommended in this order: 
 
1) Republic Services – This vendor currently services over 60 communities in the eastern Iowa 

Market.  The pride themselves on using larger carts which are proven to have the capacity to 

meet the needs of residents and provide numerous environmental benefits to collecting half full 

or less recycling carts weekly.  They come highly recommended by the City of Camanche, 

Iowa.  They present several options, their lowest combination of options was $15.95 a month 

with 65 gallon cart and recycling pick-up every other week (and your choice of either a 95 

gallon cart or a 65 gallon cart for recycling – same price).  They received a total ranking of 92.   
 
2) Johnson County Refuse – This is the city’s current vendor has a perfect track record in taking 

care of our solid waste customers.  This is a family owned company and they work very well 

with city staff.  They present are the only company that presented an option for 8 years with 

their lowest combination of $16.50; however, since City Council has expressed interest in a 

shorter term and the RFP focused on five years.  The evaluation task group agreed to evaluate 

in a apples to apples comparison with the other proposals, and therefore; decided to only review 

their 5-year proposal.  This option presented a lowest combination option of $17.50 a month 

with 35 gallon cart and recycling pick-up every week.  They received a total ranking of 91. 

 

3) ABC Disposal – ABC Disposal Systems prides themselves in the high level of customer service 

they provide.  The hours of live phone operation are 7:00 am – 5:30 pm Monday through Friday 

and 8:00 am – 12:00pm on Saturday.  ABC Disposal is a family business out of Hiawatha, and 

the City of Hiawatha strongly recommends them.  They present the most options, and their 

lowest combination of options was the best price of $14.75 a month for a 35 gallon cart every 

other week service customers that want weekly solid waste pick-up service would be priced at 

$19.75 with a 35 gallon cart.  There are also other options to choose from.  They received a total 

ranking of 91 (the tie was broken by reviewing the induvial scores as opposed to the overall 

tally score.)  

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

4) Waste Management – Pride themselves as a local company with hauling operations 

throughout Iowa.  They have provided superior waste and recycling services for residential, 

municipal, commercial, and industrial customers for more than 51 years.  They presented a 

lowest combination option of $17.38 a month with every other week recycling service, but 

that included a firm annual increase of 4% to start in year 2.  They received a total ranking 

of 61.  (They did not make any of the evaluator’s short list). 

 

 
Republic Services   

Proposal Flexibility 18  

Value to the Customer 21 Total ____92____ 

Value to the City 26  

Lowest Price 27  
 

 

Johnson County Refuse   

Proposal Flexibility 23  

Value to the Customer 22 Total ____91____ 

Value to the City 26  

Lowest Price 20  
 

 

ABC Disposal   

Proposal Flexibility 26  

Value to the Customer 26 Total ____91____ 

Value to the City 18  

Lowest Price 21  
 

 

Waste Management   

Proposal Flexibility 15  

Value to the Customer 16 Total ____61____ 

Value to the City 21  

Lowest Price 13  
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1883 – Move to Action 
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 



 

 

 

City Administrator 



 

 

 



 

 

 

Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 



 

 

 

Mayor 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1883 

 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE 

VENDOR OF CHOICE (IN ORDER OF RANKING) FOR RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE AND 

RECYCLING COLLECTION SERVICES. 

 

WHEREAS, managing municipal solid waste is important to a sustainable environment for future 

generations to enjoy a cleaner, safer and healthier world; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch takes this task as important and a critical part of establishing 

a high quality of life in this community; and 

 

WHEREAS, a selection task group evaluated several proposals from vendors who are interested 

in providing residential solid waste and recycling collection services to the City of West Branch; and 

 

WHEREAS, these proposals were evaluated based on proposal flexibility, value to the customer, 

value to the city, and lowest price.  Upon this review the proposals were scored, ranked, and based these 

outcomes vendors identified as most desirable to least desirable to negotiate a contract for services; and   

 

WHEREAS, the resolution is to authorize the City Administrator to enter into negotiations with 

the vendor of choice (in order of ranking) for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services, 

and prepare a resolution considering 5 year contract for service to approved by City Council; and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that the City 

Administrator is authorized to negotiate with the vendor(s) of choice (in order of ranking) for Residential 

Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Services, and to prepare a resolution considering 5 year contract 

with the final recommendation for the contract award to be approved by City Council in April. 

 

* * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 16th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 
 

 



rjonesii
Typewritten Text
The Proposals

rjonesii
Typewritten Text

rjonesii
Typewritten Text

rjonesii
Typewritten Text

rjonesii
Typewritten Text
Republic ServicesABC DisposalJohnson County RefuseWaste Management







































































































rjonesii
Typewritten Text
Johnson County Refuse

rjonesii
Typewritten Text

rjonesii
Typewritten Text






































































	Council packet 3-16-2020.pdf
	Claims pd 3-16-2020
	CLAIMS PD 3-16-2020 FINAL

	Council report 3-16-2020
	FEB 2020 REVENUE




